
BCP Council Offices, Town Hall, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Licensing Committee 
 

Date: Wednesday, 25 September 2019 at 10.00 am 

Venue: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Bridge Street, Christchurch BH23 1AZ 

 

Membership: 

Chairman: 
Cllr D A Flagg 

Vice Chairman: 
Cllr G Farquhar 

Cllr J Bagwell 
Cllr S Baron 
Cllr R Burton 
Cllr D Butler 
Cllr J J Butt 
 

Cllr N Decent 
Cllr B Dion 
Cllr B Dove 
Cllr B Dunlop 
Cllr D Farr 
 

Cllr T Johnson 
Cllr D Kelsey 
Cllr P Parrish 
 

 

All Members of the Licensing Committee are summoned to attend this meeting to consider 
the items of business set out on the agenda below. 
 
The press and public are welcome to attend. 
 
If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 
contact: Jill Holyoake    (01202) 454715 or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 454668 or 
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
  
This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n

lin
e
 a

n
d

 

o
n
 t

h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 

 
GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 

17 September 2019 
 



 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors. 
 

 

2.   Substitute Members  

 To receive information on any changes in the membership of the 
Committee. 
 
Note – When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a 
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their 
nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their 
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute 
member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the 
front of this agenda should be used for notifications. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interests  

 Councillors are required to comply with the requirements of the Localism 
Act 2011 and the Council's Code of Conduct regarding Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests. 

Councillors are also required to disclose any other interests where a 
Councillor is a member of an external body or organisation where that 
membership involves a position of control or significant influence, including 
bodies to which the Council has made the appointment in line with the 
Council's Code of Conduct. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes 5 - 36 

 To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Licensing 
Committee held on 29 May 2019 and the minutes of the Licensing Sub 
Committees held on 12 June, 9 and 23 July, and 6 and 20 August 2019. 
 

 

5.   Public Issues  

 To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in 
accordance with the Constitution on matters which do not fall within the 
separate Protocol for Public Speaking at hearings of the Licensing 
Committee and Sub Committees.  

Further information on the requirements for submitting these is available to 
view at the following link:- 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s2305/Public%20Items%2
0-%20Meeting%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf  

The deadline for the submission of public questions is 18 September 2019. 

The deadline for the submission of a statement is 12.00 noon, 24 
September 2019. 

The deadline for the submission of a petition is 12.00 noon, 24 September 

 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s2305/Public%20Items%20-%20Meeting%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s2305/Public%20Items%20-%20Meeting%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf


 
 

 

2019. 
 

6.   Review of Hackney Carriage Fares within the Christchurch Zone 37 - 44 

 To consider a request to review hackney carriage fares within the 
Christchurch Zone so that they align with the fares charged in the 
Bournemouth and Poole Zone. 
 

 

7.   Licensing Act 2003 - Review and Harmonisation of Statement of 
Licensing Policy 

45 - 48 

 To consider a report which asks the Committee to agree to the drafting of a 
new Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 

 

8.   Administrative Arrangements for the Licensing Committee and Sub 
Committees 

49 - 54 

 To consider a report which asks the Committee: 

 

(a) to consider arrangements for appointing Members of the Licensing 

Committee to Licensing Sub Committees. 

(b) To consider whether there are any circumstances where the 

Licensing Committee or Licensing Sub Committees may be 

required to undertake a site visit, and if so, consider adopting a site 

visit protocol. 

 

 

 
No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that 
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 29 May 2019 at 10.00 am 

 
Present: Cllr J Bagwell, Cllr S Baron, Cllr R Burton, Cllr D Butler, Cllr J J Butt, 

Cllr N Decent, Cllr B Dion, Cllr B Dove, Cllr B Dunlop, 
Cllr G Farquhar, Cllr D Farr, Cllr D A Flagg, Cllr T Johnson and 
Cllr D Kelsey 

 
1. Apologies  

 
There were no apologies for absence on this occasion. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 
There were no declarations of interest received on this occasion. 
 

3. Election of Chairman of the Licensing Committee  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor David Flagg be elected Chairman of the 
Licensing Committee for the 2019/20 Municipal Year. 

Voting: 8:7 (with the Chairman using his casting vote) 
 

4. Election of Vice Chairman of the Licensing Committee  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor George Farquhar be elected Vice 
Chairman of the Licensing Committee for the 2019/20 Municipal Year. 

Voting: No dissent 
 

5. Public Issues  
 
The Committee were advised that no public questions, statements or 
petitions had been received on this occasion. 
 

6. Protocol for Hearings  
 
The Committee considered a report which set out a proposed protocol for 
public speaking at Licensing Sub-Committee hearings. A copy of the report 
appears as Appendix ‘A’ to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

The Public Health and Protection Manager introduced the report and 
explained that the Council’s Constitution required a separate protocol to be 
established for receiving public representations in respect of hearings under 
the Licensing Act 2003, the Gambling Act 2005, and Schedule 3 of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended by 
the Policing and Crime Act 2009). 

The Committee were advised that the proposed arrangements sought to 
strike a balance between previous practices in Bournemouth, Christchurch 
and Poole along with the practice of other local authorities. 

5

Agenda Item 4



– 2 – 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
29 May 2019 

 
RESOLVED that the Protocol for Public Speaking at Licensing Sub-
Committees be approved for adoption. 

Voting: Unanimous 
 

7. Appointments to the Licensing Sub Committee  
 
The Committee were advised that a proposed schedule of membership 
would be drawn up for the Licensing Sub-Committees. Further to this 
Councillors were advised that consideration would be given to experience 
and attendance at the recent Licensing Training sessions, and that further 
training sessions would be required in order to ensure that the whole 
Committee was fully trained. 

RESOLVED that the Committee noted the proposed arrangements for 
appointing Members of the Committee to Licensing Sub-Committees. 

Voting: Unanimous 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 10.35 am  

 CHAIRMAN 

6



 – 16 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 June 2019 at 2.30 pm 
 

Present:- 

Cllr D A Flagg  – Chairman 

Present: Cllr B Dion, and Cllr D Kelsey 

 
 

9. Election of Chairman  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Flagg be elected Chairman of the Sub-
Committee for the duration of the meeting. 
 
Voting: Unanimous 
 
 

10. Apologies  
 
No apologies have been received on this occasion. 
 
 

11. Declarations of Interests  
 
There were no declarations received on this occasion. 
 
 

12. Application for a Premises Licence - Licensing Act 2003 - Tom's Bar, 1 
Church Street, Christchurch.  
 
The Chairman opened the meeting, made introductions and explained the 
procedure for the hearing. 

The Licensing Act 2003 requires the council as the Licensing Authority to 
issue premises licences. Where there are representations to an application 
for a premises licence the council must hold a hearing to consider those 
representations and decide whether to grant a premises licence under the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

The Sub-Committee were asked to consider the Premises Licence 
application for: 

 the supply of alcohol both on and off the premises between 0900 and 
2300hrs Sunday to Wednesday, 0900 to 2400hrs on Thursdays and 
0900 to 0100hrs Fridays and Saturdays 

 recorded music that is either unamplified or only played through the in-
house background music system between 0900 and 2300hrs Sunday 
to Wednesday, 0900 to 2400hrs on Thursdays and 0900 to 0100hrs 
Fridays and Saturdays 

 late night refreshment indoors between 2300 and 2400 on Thursdays 
and 2300 to 0100 Fridays and Saturdays 

7



– 17 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
12 June 2019 

 

 opening hours of the premises are 0900 to 2300hrs Sunday to 
Wednesday, 0900 to 2400hrs on Thursdays and 0900 to 0100hrs 
Fridays and Saturdays 

The Public Health and Protection Manager presented a report, which 
summarised the details of the application, as set out in Agenda Item 4, a 
copy of which had been circulated to each Member of the Sub-Committee 
and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'A' to these Minutes in the Minute 
Book. The application had resulted in representations from 10 other 
persons under some or all of the prevention of public nuisance, the 
prevention of crime and disorder, public safety and the prevention of 
children from harm licensing objectives 

Following the publication of the report, additional information had been 
submitted by   two of the other persons and circulated to all parties 
including Members of the Sub Committee. The Applicant did respond to this 
additional information and this was circulated to Members of the Sub-
Committee and Town Councillor Tarling, on behalf of Mr Peter Fenning and 
Jane Parkinson who had indicated they wished to speak at the hearing. 

In response to a question from a Councillor, the Public Health and 
Protection Manager confirmed that since the premises had been operating 
under Temporary Event Notices (TEN) there had not been any complaints 
regarding the operation.  He also confirmed that the Planning Section had 
advised that the applicant had complied with the Planning Conditions set 
out on the Planning Permission dated 22/3/19 in respect to Waste 
Management and Acoustics. 

The following persons attended the Sub Committee and gave verbal 
evidence based on their written submissions: 

On behalf of the Applicant: 

 Sandra Graham – Solicitor representing the applicant Toms Event Bars 
Ltd 

 Tom Owen   – Director and owner of the premises 

 Suze Owen – Wife of Tom Owen 

In objection: 

 Town Councillor Tarling, on behalf of Mr Peter Fenning 

 Jane Parkinson – owner of flat in the same building as the premises 

Councillors asked questions of those making representations, heard details 
of the smoking policy and waste management policy. All parties were then 
able to sum up before the Sub-Committee retired to make their 
deliberations. 

Members considered of all the evidence placed before them and reached a 
decision. 

It was RESOLVED that: 

the licence be granted as applied for, subject to the conditions as set 
out on page 35, agreed with the Police, and with the following 
additional conditions: 

8



– 18 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
12 June 2019 

 
(a) The contact number for the premises and Bar Manager be 

passed to all residents in neighbouring properties; 

(b) No drinks to be taken outside of the licensed area, except for off-
sales; 

(c) no removal of refuse and waste, including empty bottles, 
between the hours of 21:00 and 7:00; 

(d) The main front door for customer access shall be fitted with a 
self-closer   and thereafter retained. The door must be kept 
closed at all times save for ingress and egress; 

(e) The scheme for acoustic insulation between the ground floor 
and first floor accommodation that has been submitted and 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority shall be 
retained; and 

(f) No live music or amplified recorded music is permitted to be 
played within the premises except through the in-house 
background music system at any time.  

 

Reasons for Decision 

The sub-committee gave detailed consideration to the written evidence that 
had been submitted before the hearing, along with the verbal submissions 
made at the hearing. They took account of the Statement of Licensing 
Policy, The Licensing Act 2003 and the Statutory Guidance and were aware 
that there was a presumption of grant in respect of the application. 

The sub-committee recognised that no representations had been made by 
any Responsible Authority and that during the consultation period 
conditions had been agreed with Dorset Police as set out in appendix 2. 
They also noted that the premises were situated in an area identified in the 
Local Plan Core Strategy, as having a greater potential for an increased 
diversity of uses that contribute to the overall vitality and viability of the town 
centre including class A4 drinking establishments.  

They noted that planning conditions regarding acoustics and waste 
Management had been complied with which would promote the licensing 
objective of prevention of public nuisance, together with the conditions 
added regarding not taking drinks outside, not removing refuse from the 
premises between 9pm and 7am and those similar to the planning 
permission already granted regarding the door closer and music only being 
played through the in-house background music system. 

The sub-committee were satisfied that the Applicant Company had 
experience in managing licensed premises and appeared to wish to work 
with his neighbours and was willing to offer a contact number to be given to 
neighbours in case of disturbance. They noted that they had been advised 
that 3 / 4 staff should be on duty in the evening and the sub-committee 
considered this should be adequate to promote the licensing objectives in 
such a small premise. They also noted that the premises had been 
operating successfully under TENS for a period of time. 

9



– 19 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
12 June 2019 

 
They were satisfied that the premises if operated as outlined in the 
application and verbally at the hearing, together with the conditions added 
by the sub-committee should not undermine the Licensing Objectives 

The Chairman advised all parties that any persons aggrieved by the 
decision would have the right of appeal to the Magistrates Court, and any 
such appeal should be lodged within 21 days of receiving the decision 
letter. 
 

Voting: Unanimous 
Title: 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 4.40 pm  

 CHAIRMAN 

10



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 09 July 2019 at 10.00 am 
 

Present:- 

 – Chairman 

 – Vice-Chairman 

 
Present: Cllr R Burton, Cllr N Decent and Cllr D A Flagg 

 
Also in 
attendance: 

Cllr G Farquhar 

 
 

13. Election of Chairman  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor D Flagg be elected Chairman of the Sub-
Committee for the duration of the meeting. 
 
Nominated by Councillor R Burton 
Seconded by Councillor N Decent 
 
Voting: Unanimous 
 

14. Apologies  
 
There were no apologies for absence received for this meeting. 
 

15. Declarations of Interests  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

16. Exclusion of Press and Public  
 
RESOLVED TO: 
 
That the Committee agreed to exclude the press and public for items 5 and 
6 of the agenda, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972 on the grounds of the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act and that 
the public interest in withholding the information outweighs such interest in 
disclosing the information. 
 

17. Review of a Public Carriage Driver's Licence  
 
The Chairman made introductions and explained the procedure for the 
hearing which was agreed by all parties. 
 
The Licensing Officer introduced a non-public report, marked ‘5’, 
concerning the review of a Public Carriage Driver’s Licence. It was heard 

11



– 2 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
09 July 2019 

 
that the Taxi Licensing Office had received information from Dorset Police 
following allegations of sexual assault made against a hackney carriage 
driver, licensed by Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole Council.  
 
There were no representatives from Dorset Police present at the meeting.  
The Licensing Sub-Committee were asked to decide whether to caution the 
named driver, suspend the named driver’s licence for a specific period of 
time, or revoke the named driver’s licence. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee considered the written evidence presented 
in the report and subsequent appendices. All parties present at the meeting 
had the opportunity to make verbal representations as well as ask 
questions. 
 
RESOLVED TO: 
 
Revoke the Public Carriage Driver Licence on public safety grounds as per 
Section 61 2b of the Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976, 
with immediate effect. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee agreed that the named driver was not of ‘fit 
and proper’ character to hold a Public Carriage Licence, as per the Local 
Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976. Members agreed that this 
was due to the allegations made against the named driver, as well as the 
discrepancy in his version of events, on separate occasions.  
 
 
 

18. Application for a Public Carriage Driver's Licence  
 
The Chairman made introductions and explained the procedure for the 
hearing which was agreed by all parties. 
 
The Licensing Officer introduced a non-public report, marked ‘6’, 
concerning an application for a Public Carriage Driver’s Licence. It was 
heard that the Taxi Licensing Office had received an application for a new 
Public Carriage Licence from an individual who had previously held a 
Private Hire Driver Licence that was revoked in 2016, following allegations 
of inappropriate, sexual comments to passengers. The Licensing Sub-
Committee were asked to decide whether the new application for a Public 
Carriage Licence should be accepted, refused or any other action taken. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee considered the written evidence presented 
in the report and subsequent appendices. All parties present at the meeting 
had the opportunity to make verbal representations as well as ask 
questions, including the named driver and his partner. 
 
RESOLVED TO: 
Refuse the application for a Public Carriage Driver as there was insufficient 
evidence to demonstrate that the named driver was of ‘fit and proper 
character’ to hold a new Public Carriage Driver Licence. The Sub-

12



– 3 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
09 July 2019 

 
Committee agreed in the intervening period since the Court finding in 2017, 
whereby the named driver’s original Public Driver Licence was revoked, the 
named driver still took the view that he had done nothing wrong. Members 
heard that the named driver often mis-uses words and mis-interprets what 
is said to him. 
 
The Sub-Committee based their decision on the written evidence provided 
prior to the meeting and verbal representations provided at the meeting, by 
all parties.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 12:05.  

The meeting was adjourned from 10:30 to 10:45 and from 
11:15 to 12:00. 

CHAIRMAN 

13



This page is intentionally left blank

14



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 23 July 2019 at 10.00 am 
 

Present:- 

Cllr D Kelsey – Chairman 

 

Present: Cllr S Baron and Cllr B Dion 

 
Also in 
attendance: 

Cllr D Butler and Cllr G Farquhar 

 
 

19. Election of Chairman  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Kelsey be elected Chairman of the Sub-
Committee for the duration of the meeting. 

Voting: Unanimous 
 

20. Apologies  
 
There were no apologies for absence on this occasion. 
 

21. Declarations of Interests  
 
There were no declarations of interest made on this occasion. 
 
 

22. The Kitchen, Poole Park  
 
The Chairman opened the meeting, made introductions and explained the 
procedure for the hearing. 

The Licensing Act 2003 requires the council as the Licensing Authority to 
issue premises licences. Where there are representations to an application 
for premises licence the council must hold a hearing to consider those 
representations and decide whether to grant a premises licence under the 
Licencing Act 2003. 

The Sub-Committee were asked to consider the Premises License to 
licence the entire building, including the first floor as set out within the 
report. 

The Licensing Manager presented a report, which summarised the details 
of the application, as set out in Agenda Item 4, a copy of which had been 
circulated to each Member of the Sub-Committee and a copy of which 
appears as Appendix ‘A’ to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

The Sub Committee were advised that the applicant already benefited from 
a Premises Licence for the ground floor and external areas. 

The application had resulted in representations from 16 other persons 
under some or all of the prevention of public nuisance, the prevention of 

15



– 2 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
23 July 2019 

 
crime and disorder, public safety and the prevention of children from harm 
licensing objectives. 

The following persons attended the Sub Committee and gave verbal 
evidence based on their written submissions: 

On behalf of the Applicant: 

 Philip Day – Solicitor representing the applicant South Coast 
Caterers 

In objection local residents: 

 Dr M Gundy 

 Mr Lance 

 Mr J Heskins 

 Ms J Vegh 

 Ms J Clark 

 Ms S Hudson 

Councillors asked questions of those making representations and heard 
details of the CCTV and fire regulations including the maximum numbers. 
All parties were then able to sum up before the Sub-Committee retired to 
make their deliberations. 

Members considered all of the evidence placed before them and reached a 
decision. 

It was RESOLVED that:- 

the licence be granted as applied for, subject to the conditions as set 
out within the report, and with the following additional conditions; 

(a) The previous licence for the ground floor be surrendered prior 
to the new licence taking effect; and 

(b) The condition relating to the retention of CCTV recordings 
being amended to require the retention of recordings for 31 
days (and not 14 as set out). 

Reasons for Decision 

The Sub-Committee gave detailed consideration to the written evidence 
that had been submitted before the hearing, along with the verbal 
submissions made at the hearing. They took account of the Statement of 
Licensing Policy, The Licensing Act 2003 and the Statutory Guidance. 

The Sub-Committee recognised that no representations had been made by 
any Responsible Authority. 

The Sub-Committee were satisfied that the Applicant had experience in 
managing licensed premises and noted that the premises had been 
operating successfully for a long period of time. 

They were satisfied that the premises if operated as outlined in the 
application should not undermine the Licensing Objectives. 

16



– 3 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
23 July 2019 

 
The Chairman advised all parties that any persons aggrieved by the 
decision would have the right of appeal to the Magistrates Court, and any 
such appeal should be lodged within 21 days of receiving the decision 
letter. 

Voting: Unanimous 
 

23. Black Sea Supermarket 282 Old Christchurch Road  
 
The Chairman explained the procedure for the hearing. 

The Licensing Act 2003 requires the council as the Licensing Authority to 
issue premises licences. Where there are representations to an application 
for premises licence the council must hold a hearing to consider those 
representations and decide whether to grant a premises licence under the 
Licencing Act 2003. 

The Sub-Committee were asked to consider the granting of a Premises 
License to allow the sale of alcohol between 09:00 to 22:00 hours daily. 

The Licensing Manager presented a report, which summarised the details 
of the application, as set out in Agenda Item 5, a copy of which had been 
circulated to each Member of the Sub-Committee and a copy of which 
appears as Appendix ‘B’ to these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

The Sub-Committee were advised that representations had been received 
from Dorset Police in respect of this application under the public safety and 
the prevention of crime and disorder citing that the awarding of a licence 
would give rise to negative cumulative impact as the premises are located 
within the Bournemouth Cumulative Impact area.  

In addition the Sub-Committee were advised that 18 letters of support had 
been received (in email format) from customers stating that they used the 
shop regularly and wished to be able to purchase alcohol from their own 
country at the Black Sea Supermarket. 

The following persons attended the Sub Committee and gave verbal 
evidence based on their written submissions: 

On behalf of the Applicant: 

 Mr John Worsgrove – Solicitor from John Gaunt & Partners 
representing the applicant Danube River Limited 

 Mr Sukru and Mr Iliyas - Directors of Danube River Limited 

In objection, representatives from the Dorset Police, Drug and Alcohol 
Harm Reduction Team: 

 Sergeant Gareth Gosling 

 Sarah Dutton 

During the evidence presented Dorset Police sought agreement to show 
CCTV footage of anti-social behaviour in close proximity to the application 
location to support their evidence of concerns in relation to the cumulative 
impact. The Sub-Committee moved into exempt session in order to view 
the CCTV footage and the press and public were excluded during this time. 

17



– 4 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
23 July 2019 

 
The meeting moved back into open session as soon as the footage had 
been shown. 

Councillors asked questions of those making representations and heard 
details of the proposed conditions the applicant put forward in an attempt to 
prevent against adding to the cumulative impact. All parties were then able 
to sum up before the Sub-Committee retired to make their deliberations. 

Members considered all of the evidence placed before them and reached a 
decision. 

It was RESOLVED that the application for a premises licence be 
refused. 

Reason for Decision 

The Sub-Committee gave detailed consideration to the written evidence 
that had been submitted before the hearing, along with the verbal 
submissions made at the hearing. They took account of the Statement of 
Licensing Policy, The Licensing Act 2003 and the Statutory Guidance. 

The Sub-Committee were mindful that the premises were situated within 
the Bournemouth Cumulative Impact Area. 

It was the view of the Sub-Committee that the application had not 
demonstrated that there would be no negative cumulative impact, and that 
there was also not enough evidence to demonstrate that this application 
met the criteria of exceptional circumstances and consequently Members 
determined that the applicant had not rebutted the presumption of refusal in 
respect of the licence. 

The Chairman advised all parties that any persons aggrieved by the 
decision would have the right of appeal to the Magistrates Court, and any 
such appeal should be lodged within 21 days of receiving the decision 
letter. 

Voting: Unanimous 

 
24. Coffee Lab 10 Exeter Road  

 
The Chairman advised that the application had been withdrawn. 
 

25. Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
RESOLVED that in view of the nature of the business to be transacted 
it is likely that if members of the public were present during the 
following item there would be disclosure of ‘exempt information’ as 
described in the category indicated and they be therefore excluded 
from the meeting in accordance with Section 100(A) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 

26. Private Hire Driver Licence Application  
 
Exempt Information – Category 1 (Information relating to any individual) 
and Category 2 (Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an 
individual) 

18



– 5 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
23 July 2019 

 
The Licensing Manager presented a report, a copy of which had been 
circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'C' to 
these Minutes in the Minute Book. 

The Sub-Committee were advised that an application had been received for 
a private hire driver’s licence and that the DBS certificate had disclosed a 
conviction dated 5th February 2010 for 2 offences committed on the 26th 
September 2008, for possessing a class A drug with intent to supply. 

The Licensing Sub-Committee were requested to consider whether in 
determining if the applicant is a fit and proper person that they cannot do 
justice to the case except by admitting or requiring evidence of the spent 
conviction 

RESOLVED that the Sub-Committee agreed that more information of 
the conviction is required to be presented to them in a licensing 
hearing to enable justice to be done to the application. 

Voting: Unanimous 
  
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 12.25 pm  

 CHAIRMAN 

19



This page is intentionally left blank

20



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 06 August 2019 at 10.00 am 
 

Present:- 

Cllr D Kelsey – Chairman 

 
Present: Cllr J Bagwell and Cllr D A Flagg 

 
27. Election of Chairman  

 
RESOLVED that Councillor D Flagg be elected Chairman of the Sub-
Committee for the duration of the meeting. 
 
Nominated by Councillor D Kelsey 
Seconded by Councillor J Bagwell 
 
Voting: Unanimous 
 

28. Apologies  
 
There were no apologies for absence received for this meeting. 
 

29. Declarations of Interests  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

30. Baggies Coffee House, 43 High Street, Christchurch  
 
Attendance: 
 
Sean Whitney – Public Health and Protection Manager, BCP Council 
Johanne McNamara – Senior Solicitor, Law and Governance, BCP Council 
Michelle Cutler – Democratic and Overview and Scrutiny Officer, Law and 
Governance, BCP Council 
Councillor G Farquhar – Observing for training purposes 
Press – 1 
Members of the Public: 3 
 

An application to vary the Premises Licence at ‘Baggies Coffee House’, 43 
High Street, Christchurch, had been received under section 34 of the 
Licensing Act 2003. An objection to that variation application had been 
received from Dorset Police, concerned with the licensing objectives of the 
prevention of crime and disorder and public safety.  

 
Where representations are received the Licensing Authority is obliged to 
hold a hearing to consider those representations and determine what action 
to take in respect of the application. 
 

21



– 2 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
06 August 2019 

 
Additional evidence had been received from Dorset Police via email on 5 
August 2019 and this had been sent to all parties prior to the Hearing. Hard 
copies were circulated at the start of the Hearing and are attached as an 
appendix to these Minutes. 
 

The Applicant, Mr Ismail, submitted additional evidence via email on 5 
August 2019 in response to that submitted by Dorset Police. This evidence 
was not sent to Dorset Police prior to the Hearing and therefore Dorset 
Police did not consent to it being submitted to the Sub-Committee for 
consideration. 
 
The Public Health and Protection Manager presented a report, as 
previously circulated. The Licensing Sub-Committee was asked to consider 
the application to vary the Premises Licence in respect of the Premises 
known as ‘Baggies Coffee House’, 43 High Street, Christchurch, to extend 
the terminal hour for the sale of alcohol to 02:00 hours Monday to Sunday 
and to permit late night refreshment until 02:30 hours. 
 
An objection to the application to vary the Premises Licence had been 
received on behalf of Dorset Police in relation to the prevention of crime 
and disorder and public safety. 
 
The Chairman asked the Applicant, Mr Ismail, to clarify the hours that he 
was applying for, as there appeared to be some confusion in the 
paperwork. Mr Ismail confirmed that he wished to extend the terminal hour 
for the sale of alcohol by one hour to 00:00 hours. 
 
The following persons attended the Sub-Committee and gave verbal 
evidence based on their written submissions: 
 
On behalf of the Applicant: 
 
Mr Ahmed Ismail –  Director and Owner of ‘Baggies Coffee House’ 
 
On behalf of Dorset Police: 
 
Sergeant Gareth Gosling – Drug and Alcohol Harm Reduction Team, 
Dorset Police 
Louise Busfield – Licensing Officer, Dorset Police 
 
Members of the Sub-Committee asked various questions to all parties 
present at the hearing. 
 
All parties were then given the opportunity to sum up, before the Sub-
Committee retired to make its decision. 
 
It was RESOLVED that: 
 
The Sub-Committee, having considered the application and 
representations made by Dorset Police relating to crime and disorder 
objectives, has decided not to grant the application to vary the 

22



– 3 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
06 August 2019 

 
Premises Licence in respect of the premises known as ‘Baggies 
Coffee House’, 43 High Street, Christchurch. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The Sub-Committee has no confidence in the applicant being able to 
uphold the licensing objectives, in particular,  public safety and crime 
and disorder, due to the applicant’s apparent lack of understanding of 
the duties of a licensee. 
 
Right of Appeal 
 
All parties to the Application have the right to Appeal to the Magistrates 

Court within the period of 21 days beginning with the day on which the 

Appellant is notified by the Licensing Authority of the decision appealed 

against. 

Voting: Unanimous 
 

31. Exclusion of Press and Public  
 
RESOLVED that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 in Part I of 
Schedule 12A of the said Act and that the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs such interest in disclosing the 
information. 
 

32. Personal Licence Application  
 
Attendance: 
 
Sarah Rogers – Senior Licensing Officer, BCP Council 
 
The Senior Licensing Officer presented a confidential report, as previously 
circulated.  
 
The Sub-Committee was advised that Dorset Police had served an 
objection notice in respect of an application for a Personal Licence on the 
grounds that they believed that to grant the application would undermine 
the crime prevention licensing objective. 
 
The following persons attended the Sub-Committee and gave verbal 
evidence based on their written submissions: 
 
On behalf of the Applicant: 
 
The Applicant and his partner 
 
 

23



– 4 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
06 August 2019 

 
On behalf of Dorset Police: 
 
Sarah Dutton – Alcohol Licensing Officer, Dorset Police 
Sergeant Gareth Gosling – Drug and Alcohol Harm Reduction Team, 
Dorset Police 
Louise Busfield – Licensing Officer, Dorset Police 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee was advised that the applicant had a 
relevant conviction disclosed in his DBS check in the form of a drug driving 
conviction. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee considered the written evidence presented 
in the report and subsequent appendices.  
 
Members of the Sub-Committee asked various questions to all parties 
present at the hearing. 
 
All parties were then given the opportunity to sum up, before the Sub-
Committee retired to make its decision. 
 
It was RESOLVED that 
 
the application for a Personal Licence be refused. 
 
Reasons for the Decision 
 
Whilst the Sub-Committee accepts that the applicant has made a 
grave error of judgement and that the applicant fully regrets his 
actions and the mistake he has made, it feels that the application for a 
Personal Licence has been made too soon to defer from the current 
policies in place. 
 
The Sub-Committee is mindful of section 120 (2) of the Licensing Act 
2003 and therefore refuses this application. 
 
Right of Appeal 
 
All parties to the Application have the right to Appeal to the Magistrates 

Court within the period of 21 days beginning with the day on which the 

Appellant is notified by the Licensing Authority of the decision appealed 

against. 

Voting: Unanimous 
 

33. Private Hire Drivers Licence Application  
 
The applicant was present at the hearing. 
 
The Public Health and Protection Manager introduced a confidential report, 
as previously circulated. 
 

24



– 5 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
06 August 2019 

 
The Licensing Sub-Committee was advised that an application had been 
received for a Private Hire Driver’s Licence and the DBS certificate had 
disclosed a conviction dated 5 February 2010 for 2 offences committed on 
26 September 2008, for possessing a class A drug with intent to supply. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee was asked to consider whether, in light of 
this conviction, and the time that had passed since the conviction, the 
applicant was deemed to be a ‘fit and proper’ person to hold a Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence. 
 
The Licensing Sub-Committee considered the written evidence presented 
in the report and asked various questions of all parties present. 
 
All parties present at the hearing had the opportunity to make verbal 
representations. 
 
It was RESOLVED that 
 
the application for a Private Hire Driver’s Licence be refused. 
 
Reasons for the Decision 
 
The Sub-Committee has decided not to grant the application, having 
deemed the applicant not to be a ‘fit and proper’ person to hold a 
Private Hire Driver’s Licence, in accordance with Section 51 of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 
 
In reaching its decision the Sub-Committee has taken into account the 
conviction and sentence dated 5 February 2010 and the guidance 
issued in April 2018 by the Institute of Licensing at paragraph 4.36, 
which states that ‘where an applicant has any conviction, or related 
to, the supply of drugs, or possession with intent to supply, a licence 
will not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed since the 
completion of any sentence imposed’. 
 
Right of Appeal 
 
All parties to the Application have the right to Appeal to the Magistrates 

Court within the period of 21 days beginning with the day on which the 

Appellant is notified by the Licensing Authority of the decision appealed 

against. 

Voting: Unanimous 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 1.30 pm  

 CHAIRMAN 

25



This page is intentionally left blank

26



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 

 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 20 August 2019 at 10.00 am 

 

Present:- 

 

 

 

Present: Cllr S Baron, Cllr B Dunlop and Cllr G Farquhar 

 

Also in 
attendance: 

Cllr D Butler, Cllr D Kelsey, Cllr P Parrish 

 

Officers in 
attendance: 

Trudi Barlow (Licensing Technician), Michelle Fletcher (Licensing 
Technician), Wesley Freeman (Consumer Protection Officer 
(Licensing)), Sarah Rogers (Senior Licensing Officer), Sunyana 
Sharma (Barrister) and Frank Wenzel (Licensing Team Manager) 

 

 

34. Election of Chairman  

RESOLVED that:- 

Cllr G Farquhar be elected Chairman of the Sub-Committee for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

35. Apologies  

 

27



– 2 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
20 August 2019 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr N Decent. 

 

36. Declarations of Interests  

 

There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting.  

 

37. Application for Variation of Premises Licence - The Buffalo - 303-305 
Wimborne Road, BH9 2AA  

 

The Chairman initiated introductions and explained the procedure for the 
hearing, to which all parties agreed.  

The Sub-Committee was asked to consider an application made by Laceys 
Solicitors representing Russell Restaurants Bournemouth Limited for a 
variation to the premises licence for The Buffalo, 303-305 Wimborne Road 
BH9 2AA. The variation applied for was to extend the hours for the sale of 
alcohol and the provision of regulated entertainment to commence at 10:00 
hours on all days and to end at 01:00 on Sundays to Thursdays with a 
further 30 minutes for late night refreshment and opening (01:30 hours).  

The Senior Licensing Officer summarised the details of the application, as 
set out in report ‘5’, a copy of which had been circulated and a copy of 
which appears as Appendix ‘A’ to these Minutes in the Minute Book. The 
application prompted representations from two other persons on the 
grounds that the application, if granted, would undermine three of the 
licensing objectives. These being: public safety, the prevention of crime and 
disorder and the prevention of public nuisance.  

  

All parties at the Sub-Committee meeting had received additional 
documentation prior to the hearing. These included:   

• Written statement from Laceys Solicitors on behalf of the applicant  

• Photographs of the premises  

• Correspondence between the applicant and the Licensing Authority, 
including a copy of a public objection.  

• Letter and email of support from Councillor Chris Rigby.  

28



– 3 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
20 August 2019 

 
 

The following persons attended the Sub Committee and gave verbal 

evidence based on their written submissions:   

 

Other persons in objection: 

• Cllr S Bull – Ward Councillor  

• Ms D Rees – Local resident  

 

On behalf of the Applicant:   

• Tom Russell – Applicant  

• Philip Day – Solicitor representing the applicant 

 

Members of the Sub Committee asked various questions of all parties 
present at the hearing. All parties were given the opportunity to ask 
questions of one another. All parties were then able to sum up before the 
Sub-Committee retired to make its decision.  

 

RESOLVED that: -   

The application for variation of the premises licence for The Buffalo, 303 – 
305 Wimborne Road, BH9 2AA be GRANTED IN PART, to extend the 
hours for the sale of alcohol and the provision of regulated entertainment to 
commence at 10.00 on all days. 

The application to extend the hours for the sale of alcohol and the provision 
of regulated entertainment to end at 01.00 on Sundays to Thursdays with a 
further 30 minutes for late night refreshment and opening (01.30) be 
REFUSED.   

  

Reasons for Decision:   

The Sub-Committee gave detailed consideration to the written evidence 
that had been submitted before the hearing, along with the verbal 
submissions made at the hearing by all parties. In making its decision the 
Sub Committee considered the representations made by the other persons, 

29



– 4 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
20 August 2019 

 
the submissions made by and on behalf of the applicant, the relevant 
licensing objective, the Licensing Act 2003, Regulations, Guidance and the 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.  

As the premises is in close proximity of a highly, densely populated 
residential area, the Sub-Committee agreed that the extension of the 
licensable activities to 01.00 from Sunday to Thursday, and the late-night 
refreshment opening for the further 30 minutes, would be contrary to the 
licensing objective for the prevention of public nuisance. The Sub-
Committee did not have this concern with the earlier opening hours, from 
10.00.  

The Licensing Officer advised all parties that any persons aggrieved by the 
decision would have the right of appeal to the Magistrates Court, and any 
such appeal should be lodged within 21 days of receiving the decision 
letter.  

 

38. Exclusion of Press and Public  

 

RESOLVED that:- 

Under Section 100 (A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraphs 1 and 2 in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Act and that 
the public interest in withholding the information outweighs such interest in 
disclosing the information. 

 

39. Review of a Public Carriage Driver licence  

 

The Chairman made introductions and explained the procedure for the 
hearing, which was agreed to by all parties present.  

The Licensing Officer introduced a non-public report marked ‘6’, a copy of 
which had been circulated, concerning an application for a licence to drive a 
Hackney Carriage and/or Private Hire vehicle in the Bournemouth Zone. It 
was heard that the named applicant in the report had previously held a 
licence issued by Bournemouth Borough Council and that during the period 
of the licence, the named applicant had received two criminal convictions 
for battery and had failed to notify the Licensing Authority of the conviction 
within seven days. Members were informed that this was a contravention of 
the conditions of the licence, as set out in the Public Carriage Conditions, 

30



– 5 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
20 August 2019 

 
Bylaws and Guidance known as the ‘Blue Book’ issued to all drivers. The 
criminal convictions only came to light when the applicant submitted an up 
to date DBS enhanced certificate as part of his new application. The Sub 
Committee was asked to consider whether the applicant met the fit and 
proper person criteria for holding a Hackney Carriage and/or Private Hire 
vehicle licence. 

 

The named applicant attended the hearing and made verbal 
representations in support of his application. All parties present at the 
meeting had the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

RESOLVED that:- 

The application for a licence to drive a Hackney Carriage and/or Private 
Hire vehicle in the Bournemouth Zone be refused.  

 

Reasons for Decision: 

Having carefully considered the written evidence and the verbal evidence 
presented at the hearing, the Sub Committee agreed that the named 
applicant was not a fit and proper person to hold a licence to drive a 
Hackney Carriage and/or Private Hire vehicle in accordance with Section 
51(a) and Section 59 (a) of the Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions 
Act 1976. 

The Sub Committee reached this decision due to the nature of the two 
criminal convictions for battery, with reference to paragraph 6.6 of the 
Council’s Convictions Policy, and the failure to notify the Licensing Authority 
of said convictions within the required timeframe whilst in possession of his 
previous licence, contrary to the conditions of his licence as set out in the 
Public Carriage Conditions, Bylaws and Guidance known as the Blue Book.  

The named driver was informed of his right to appeal to the Magistrates’ 
Court within 21 days of receiving the decision letter. 

 

40. Review of a Public Carriage Driver licence  

The Chairman made introductions and explained the procedure for the 
hearing, which was agreed to by all parties present. 

  

31



– 6 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
20 August 2019 

 
The Licensing Officer introduced a non-public report, marked ‘7’, a copy of 
which had been circulated concerning a review of a licence to drive a 
Hackney Carriage and/or Private Hire vehicle in the Bournemouth Zone. 
Members were told that the named driver in the report had failed to notify 
the Licencing Authority of a criminal conviction for battery within seven 
days. Members were informed that this was a contravention of the 
conditions of the licence, as set out in the Public Carriage Conditions, 
Bylaws and Guidance known as the ‘Blue Book’ issued to all drivers. The 
criminal conviction only came to light when information of the named 
driver’s convictions were published by a third party media source. 

 

In addition to the written evidence presented in the report, the Licensing 
Sub Committee also considered the following additional information 
submitted before the hearing: 

 

 A list of complaints, received by the Licensing Authority, relating to 
the named driver. 

 Video footage of the named driver during one of the listed 
complaints. 

 A response from the named driver relating to the video footage. 

 

Video footage of the incident referred to in the list of complaints relating to 
the named driver was shown to the Licensing Sub Committee with the 
consent of all parties. 

 

The Sub Committee was asked to consider whether the applicant met the fit 
and proper person criteria for holding a Hackney Carriage and/or Private 
Hire vehicle licence. 

 

The named applicant attended the hearing and made verbal 
representations in support of his application. All parties present at the 
meeting had the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

RESOLVED that:-  

The licence of the named driver to drive a Hackney Carriage and/or Private 
Hire vehicle in the Bournemouth Zone be revoked with immediate effect in 
the interests of public safety. 

32



– 7 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
20 August 2019 

 
 

Reasons for Decision:- 

Having carefully considered the written evidence and the verbal and visual 
evidence presented at the hearing, the Sub Committee agreed that the 
named applicant was not a fit and proper person to hold a licence to drive a 
Hackney Carriage and/or Private Hire vehicle in accordance with Section 
61 of the Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976.  

The Sub Committee reached this decision due to the nature of the criminal 
conviction for battery, with reference to paragraph 6.6 of the Council’s 
Convictions Policy, and the failure to notify the Licencing Authority of said 
conviction within the required timeframe contrary to the conditions of his 
licence as set out in the Public Carriage Conditions, Bylaws and Guidance 
known as the ‘Blue Book’.  

Furthermore, Members agreed that, though disputed by the named driver, 
on the balance of probability the list of formal complaints against the named 
driver demonstrated an emerging pattern of aggressive behaviour.  

 

The named driver was informed of his right to appeal to the Magistrates’ 

court within 21 days. 

 

41. Review of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver's Licence  

 

The Chairman made introductions and explained the procedure for the 
hearing, which was agreed to by all parties present. 

  

The Licensing Manager introduced a non-public report, marked ‘8’, a copy 
of which had been circulated concerning a review of the named applicant’s 
personal licence to drive a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicle in the 
Poole Zone. Members heard that the Licensing Authority had received a 
complaint in relation to the named driver regarding a Blue Badge abuse 
incident as well as an alleged assault on the traffic warden at the scene.  

The Licensing Sub-Committee was asked to consider whether the applicant 
met the fit and proper person criteria for holding a Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire vehicle licence. 

The named driver attended the hearing and made verbal representations 
regarding the incident. All parties present at the meeting had the 
opportunity to ask questions. 

33



– 8 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
20 August 2019 

 
 

RESOLVED that:-  

The licence of the named driver to drive a Hackney Carriage and/or Private 
Hire vehicle in the Poole Zone be REVOKED. Members agreed that the 
named driver was not of ‘fit and proper character’ to hold a licence in 
accordance with Section 61 of the Local Government Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act 1976. 

 

Reasons for Decision: 

The Sub-Committee decided that on the balance of probabilities, the named 
driver had knowingly misused the Blue Badge on the date that the 
complaint was made.  

In addition, the named driver had confirmed that he had incorrectly used the 
Blue Badge on a number of previous occasions, which the Sub-Committee 
felt, on the balance of probabilities, he had done so knowingly. Finally, 
regarding the allegations of assault, the Sub-Committee concluded that on 
the balance of probabilities, the named driver had assaulted the traffic 
warden,  

This, in addition to the Blue Badge abuse, rendered him not of ‘fit and 
proper character’ to hold a personal licence to drive either a Private Hire 
vehicle in accordance with Section 61 of the Local Government 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976. 

The named driver was informed of his right to appeal to the Magistrates’ 

court within 21 days of receiving the decision letter. 

 

 

The meeting started at 10.00. 

The meeting was adjourned between the following times: 

 

11:35 – 12:47 

 

13:10 – 13:37  

 

34



– 9 – 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
20 August 2019 

 
14:20 – 15:05 

 

15:10 – 15:25 

 

16:35 – 18:05 

 

 

 

 

The meeting ended at 18:10  

 CHAIRMAN 

35



This page is intentionally left blank

36



 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject To consider a request to review hackney carriage fares within 
the Christchurch Zone so that they align with the fares 
charged in the Bournemouth and Poole Zones. 

Meeting date 25 September 2019 

Status Public Report  

Executive summary 
The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
gives powers to councils to set fares that hackney carriage 
drivers charge for journeys commencing from a taxi rank or 
when hailed in the street. Any proposed increase has to be 
subject to a public consultation exercise.  
 
The last increase of the hackney carriage fares in 
Christchurch was granted in 2017. In October 2018, following 
the required public consultation to which an objection was 
received, members of the then Christchurch Licensing 
Committee resolved to refuse the requested increase. 
 

A request has been received to consider an increase in the 
hackney carriage fare structure such that it aligns with the 
fare structures operating in the Bournemouth and Poole 
Zones.     

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that: 

 Members consider the proposed hackney carriage fare 
structure to apply in the Christchurch Zone which, if 
approved and subject to the outcome of the public 
consultation exercise, will come into force 14 days after 
the public consultation commences.   

Reason for 
recommendations 

To follow the statutory procedure for fixing hackney carriage 
fares. 

37

Agenda Item 6



 

Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Lewis Allison, Portfolio holder for Tourism, Leisure 
and Communities 

Corporate Director Kate Ryan, Corporate Director Environment and 
Communities 

Report Author Sean Whitney, Public Health and Protection Manager 

 01202 795387 

 sean.whitney@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Wards Burton & Grange; Christchurch Town; Commons; Highcliffe & 
Walkford; Mudeford, Stanpit & West Highcliffe;  

Classification For Decision 
Title:  

Background  

1. Following the creation of BCP Council the operation of taxi licensing has 

maintained three zones based upon the legacy council areas. The requirement 

for these zones is because of the different policy requirements across the legacy 

areas such as vehicle livery and age limits, restrictive policies for new driver 

licences in some areas and different tariffs. 

2. In practice having the three zones means that the holder of a licence in one zone 

is not permitted to operate in the other two zones without holding the necessary 

licences for that zone.   

3. The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 gives powers to 

Councils to set fares that hackney carriage drivers charge to members of the 

public. 

4. These fares legally only relate to journeys commencing from a taxi rank or hailed 

in the street and are calculated by way of a taxi meter. However, the fares agreed 

by the Council are also used by many companies to work out charges for pre-

booked/private hire journeys. 

5. Any request from the trade to increase tariffs must be submitted and considered 

separately for each zone. As such a request has been received to increase the 

tariffs operable within the Christchurch zone.  

Current Table of Fares 

6. The last increase of the hackney carriage fares in Christchurch was granted in 

2017. In October 2018 following the required public consultation to which an 

objection was received, members of the then Christchurch Licensing Committee 

resolved to refuse the requested increase. 

7. The current table of fares that apply for hackney carriage journeys in the 

Christchurch Zone are as follows (see appendix 1 for detailed breakdown); 

38



 

Tariff 1 - Day Rate (approximate charge) 
£4.45 
for the first 
mile 

£2.25 
per mile 
thereafter 

Tariff 2 - Unsociable Hours (approximate 
charge) 

 Midnight – 06:30 hrs daily.  

 Bank/Public Holidays – 18:30hrs day 

before to 06:30hrs the day after 

£5.90 
for the first 
mile 

£3.00 
per mile 
thereafter 

Tariff 3 - Christmas and New Year 
(approximate charge) 
 

£6.65 
for the first 
mile 

£3.35 
per mile 
thereafter 

 

Proposed Table of Fares 

8. The proposed table of fares which align with the current fare structure operable in 

Bournemouth and Poole are as set below (see Appendix 2 for detailed 

breakdown;  

Tariff 1 - Day Rate (approximate charge) 
£4.69 
for the first 
mile 

£2.37 
per mile 
thereafter 

Tariff 2 - Unsociable Hours (approximate 
charge) 

 Midnight – 06:30 hrs daily.  

 Bank/Public Holidays – 18:30hrs day 

before to 06:30hrs the day after 

£6.25 
for the first 
mile 

£3.15 
per mile 
thereafter 

Tariff 3 - Christmas and New Year 
(approximate charge) 
 

£7.03 
for the first 
mile 

£3.55 
per mile 
thereafter 

 

Consultation 

9. The proposed fare structure has been submitted by representatives of the taxi 

trade.  

10. If approved by members the proposed fare structure is required to be advertised 

for public consultation for a period of 14 days.  

11. If no objections are received then the proposed fare structure will come into force 

on the date the public consultation period ends.  

12. If objections are received then the matter must be brought back before the 

committee within 2 months of the date the public consultation period ended for 

members to consider the objections and determine the revised fare structure to 

be implemented. 

39



 

Summary of financial implications 

13. Advertising of the proposed fare structure is required in a local newspaper which 

would incur a charge. 

Summary of legal implications  

14.  The process for the fixing of fares for hackney carriages is set down in section 

65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  

Summary of human resources implications  

15.  N/A 

Summary of environmental impact  

16. N/A 

Summary of public health implications  

17. N/A 

Summary of equality implications  

18. N/A 

Summary of risk assessment  

19. N/A 

Background papers  

Published works  

Appendices  

Appendix 1; Detailed breakdown of current fare structure in Christchurch zone 
 
Appendix 2; Detailed breakdown of proposed fare structure in Christchurch zone 

 

40



Appendix 1 
CHRISTCHURCH BOROUGH COUNCIL'S HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES 

CONTACT TEL NO: 01202 795352 

Complaints in writing to Licensing Department, Civic Offices, Bridge Street, Christchurch. BH23 1AZ 

These fares apply to the Christchurch zone. Fares ending outside the zone must also not exceed these charges unless agreed in advance 

Tariff 1 Day Rate (approximate charge) 
 

£4.45 for the 1st mile  

£2.25 per mile thereafter 

Tariff 2 Unsocial Hours (approximate charge) 

i) Midnight – 0630hrs Daily 

ii) Bank/Public Holidays – 1830hrs day before to 0630hrs the day after. 

£5.90 for the 1st mile 

£3.00 per mile thereafter 

Tariff 3 Christmas and New Year (approximate charge) 

i) Between 1830hrs on 24th December to  
0630hrs on 27th December  

ii) Between 1830hrs on 31st December to 0630hrs on 2nd January 
 

£6.65 for the 1st mile 

£3.35 per mile thereafter 

 

DETAILED BREAKDOWN TARIFF 1 TARIFF 2 TARIFF 3 * EXTRAS Please see charge under each tariff 

Initial charge £3.00 £4.00 £4.50 a) For each bicycle, child’s perambulator, 
pushchair, dog or cat 

b) For each one or two articles of luggage 
carried (excluding small hand luggage) 

c) For each person over one (two children 
under the age of ten being counted as one 
person; children under three no charge) for 
charging purposes only 

d) Wheelchairs and similar mechanically 
operated personal conveyances, and 
assistance dogs – FREE OF EXTRA CHARGE 

Initial distance 628.57yds 635.39yds 628.57yds 

Initial waiting time  3min 0sec 3min 10sec 3min 0sec 

Additional charge per fare unit 20 pence 25 pence 30 pence 

Each additional fare unit (distance) 157.14yds 147.15yds 157.14yds 

Additional waiting time 45sec 45sec 45sec 

Extras* 20 pence 25 pence  25 pence 

For each hiring made by telephone or 
pre-booked running in fee 

80 pence £1.00 £1.00 

Soiling the carriage by person or animal Max £100 Max £100 Max £100 

 

41



T
his page is intentionally left blank

42



Appendix 2 
Proposed Christchurch Zone Fare Chart 

Tariff 1 Day Rate (approximate charge) 
0630 hrs to midnight 

£4.69 for the 1st mile  

£2.37 per mile thereafter 

Tariff 2 Unsocial Hours (approximate charge) 

Hours between midnight and 0630 hrs daily and all 
Bank/Public Holidays 

£6.25 for the 1st mile 

£3.15 per mile thereafter 

Tariff 3 Christmas and New Year (approximate charge) 

i) Between 1830hrs on 24th December and 0630hrs      on 
27th December  
ii) Between 1830hrs on 31st December and 0630hrs on 
2nd January 
 

£7.03 for the 1st mile 

£3.55 per mile thereafter 

DETAILED BREAKDOWN TARIFF 1 TARIFF 2 TARIFF 3 

Initial charge £3.00 £4.00 £4.50 
Initial distance 461.75m 

(504.98 yds) 
461.10m 
(504.27 yds)  

462.40m 
(505.69 yds)  

Initial time  2 mins 33 secs 2 mins 42 secs 2mins 33 secs 
Additional charge per fare unit 20 pence 25 pence 30 pence 
Each additional fare unit (distance) 135.81m 

(148.52 yds) 
127.73m 
(139.68 yds) 

136.00m 
(148.73 yds) 

Each additional fare unit (Time applies 
when meter is not registering distance) 

45sec 45sec 45sec 

EXTRA CHARGES                                                                     TARIFF 1 TARIFFS 2 & 3 

a) For each one or two items of luggage or each animal 
carried (excluding small amounts of hand luggage or 
carrier bags). 

20p 25p 

b) For each person in addition to the hirer,  
(for charging purposes only two children under the age 
of ten being counted as one person, children under 
three no charge) 

20p 25p 

c) For 5 or more persons carried in a multi-seater vehicle £1.00 £1.25 

d) For each pre-arranged hiring-booking fee £1.00 £1.25 

e) Soiling the carriage by person or animal £75.00 

NOTE Wheelchairs and similar mechanically operated 
personal conveyances and assistance dogs. 

NO CHARGE 

 

43



This page is intentionally left blank

44



 

 

Licensing Committee 
 
 

 

Report subject Licensing Act 2003 – Review and harmonisation of 
Statement of Licensing Policy 

Meeting date 25th September 2019 

Status Public Report 

Executive summary Currently there are three Statements of Licensing Policy, one 
for each legacy authority. A new combined BCP Statement of 
Licensing Policy is required. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that: 

Members are asked to agree to the drafting of a new 
Statement of Licensing Policy 

Reason for 
recommendations 

The three legacy authorities have individual Statements of 
Licensing Policy which must be referred to when making 
decisions under the Licensing Act 2003. To aid members in 
making decisions and to assist applicants a new single policy 
is required to represent the new BCP council area and 
priorities. 

45

Agenda Item 7



Portfolio Holder(s): Cllr Lewis Allison 

Corporate Director Kate Ryan 

Contributors 
Nananka Randle – Licensing Manager 
 01202 01202 451307 

 Nananka.randle@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Wards N/A 

Classification For Decision 

 

Background 

1. Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 sets out the requirement for a Licensing 
Authority to determine and publish its policy every five years setting out how they 
exercise their licensing functions. 

 

2. On 6th April 2018 Regulations made under the Policing and Crime Act 2018 made 
changes to Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 and introduced the new Section 
5A both relating to “Cumulative Impact Assessments” (CIA).  Licensing 
Authorities must now have regard to any CIAs published when either determining 
or revisiting their policies. 

 
3. A CIA must set out evidence for, in the Licensing Authority’s opinion, as set out in 

an assessment that it is likely it would be inconsistent with the authority’s duty to 
promote the licensing objectives to grant any further premises licences or club 
premises certificates in respect of premises in that area. 

 
4. When considering any amendments to the Statement of Licensing Policy (the Policy) 

consideration should also be given to the Licensing Act 2003, the Guidance issued 
under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and the four licensing objectives (the 
prevention of crime and disorder, the prevention of public nuisance, public safety and 
the protection of children from harm). 

5. In this case, a new Policy will be created to incorporate the full conurbation of BCP 
Council. 

6. The three legacy authorities Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole all currently have 
individual Statement of Licensing Policies, in particular the policy for Bournemouth 
includes a special policy regarding cumulative impact areas that must be assessed. 
Before publishing a CIA the Licensing Authority must consult with the following:- 

 The Chief Officer of Police 

 The Chief Fire Officer 

 The Local Health Authority 

 Such persons as the Licensing Authority considers to be representative of the 
holders of premises licences and club premises certificates 

 Such persons as the Licensing Authority considers to be representative of 
personal licence holders issued by that Authority 

46

mailto:Nananka.randle@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 Other persons the Licensing Authority considers to be representative of 
businesses and residents in its area 

 
7. Once the new Statement of Licensing Policy has been drafted including any CIA, 

officers will bring the draft document before the full Licensing Committee to give 

members the opportunity to comment and shape the new Policy. 

8. Following this the draft document must go out to public consultation for a period of up 

to 12 weeks. All comments will be collated, and the draft policy will then be bought 

back to the full Licensing Committee, members will then to go through each comment 

made and agree any necessary amendments as suggested via the public consultation 

process. 

9. Once the draft has been updated with all amendments the final version of the Policy is 

then sent to Full Council for final determination. 

 

Summary of financial implications 

10. Any fees incurred will be absorbed within current budgets. Any costs associated with 

the review process will be covered by the income from the Licensing Act 2003 fees 

and/or annual fees received. 

 
11. Paragraph 13.8 of the Section 182 Guidance states “When undertaking consultation 

exercises, licensing authorities should have regard to cost and time. Fee levels are 

intended to provide full cost recovery of all licensing functions including the preparation 

and publication of a statement of licensing policy, but this will be based on the statutory 

requirements. When licensing authorities exceed these requirements, they will have 

to absorb these costs themselves.” 

 

Summary of legal implications 

 
12. The transformation order creating BCP council provided a two-year period to 

harmonise legacy policies. 

13. If the Policy process is not completed by 31 March 2021 the authority will not be able 

to rely on the Policy as part of the Licensing Committee decision making process. 

 

Summary of human resources implications 

14. N/A 

 
Summary of environmental impact 

15. N/A 

 
Summary of public health implications 

16. N/A 

47



Summary of equality implications 

17. An Equality Impact Needs Assessment is being completed and will be finalised 

when the draft report comes back to the committee. 

 

Summary of risk assessment 

18. N/A 
 
Background papers 

 
Published Works 

 
Licensing Act 2003 
Sections 5 and 5A of the Licensing Act 2003 
Amended guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

 

Appendices 

48



LICENSING COMMITTEE  

  

Report subject  Administrative Arrangements for Licensing Committee and 

Licensing Sub Committees 

Meeting date  25 September 2019 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  The Council’s Constitution makes provision for the Licensing 

Committee to delegate appropriate matters to Licensing Sub 

Committees for decision. This report asks the Committee to 

consider arrangements for appointing Members of the 

Licensing Committee to Licensing Sub Committees. 

 

Practices in the three preceding authorities differed in 

respect of the use of site visits by Licensing Committees 

and Licensing Sub Committees. The Committee may wish 

to consider whether there are any circumstances where the 

Licensing Committee or Licensing Sub Committees may be 

required to undertake a site visit, and if so, consider 

adopting a site visit protocol. 

 

Recommendations  

  

It is RECOMMENDED that:  

(a) The Committee considers and agrees 

arrangements for appointing Members of the 

Licensing Committee to Licensing Sub 

Committees.  

 

(b) The Committee considers whether it wishes to 

make any provision for site visits by the Licensing 

Committee and Licensing Sub Committees  

 

Reason for 

recommendations  

To ensure that the Licensing Committee has appropriate 

arrangements in place for the operation of Licensing Sub 

Committees and site visits. 

 

Portfolio Holder(s):  

 

Councillor Vikki Slade, Leader of the Council 

 

49

Agenda Item 8



 

Corporate Director  

 

Julian Osgathorpe, Corporate Director, Resources 

 

 

Report Author  

 

Jill Holyoake, Senior Democratic and Overview Scrutiny 

Officer 

 

Wards  All Wards  

Classification  For Decision 
Title:  

Background   

1. The Council’s Constitution makes provision for the appointment of a Licensing 

Committee consisting of fifteen Councillors, to be responsible for determining 

those matters relating to Licensing functions which are set out in Part 3.3 of the 

Constitution. The Constitution allows the Licensing Committee to delegate 

appropriate matters to Licensing Sub Committees for a decision.  

 

Appointment of Sub Committees 

 

2. Such matters which may be delegated to Licensing Sub Committees are set out 

in Part 3. 3 (d) of the Constitution and fall under a range of legislation, including 

the Licensing Act 2003. The minimum number of members required to consider 

applications made under the Licensing Act 2003 is three. There is no legal 

requirement in this respect for other business which Sub Committees may 

consider, e.g. taxi matters. To allow matters under different legislation to be 

heard at the same time for efficiency purposes, it is recommended that the 

membership and quorum for Sub Committees is three councillors, with the added 

provision of one named reserve councillor to be available in the event of 

unavoidable absence or conflict of interest. 

 

3. At its meeting held on 29 May 2019 the Committee noted that a proposed 

schedule of membership would be drawn up for the Licensing Sub Committees. 

A schedule of sub-committee memberships consisting of three councillors plus a 

reserve has been put in place by Democratic Services, in consultation with the 

Chairman of the Licensing Committee, up until 1 October 2019. Membership has 

been drawn up based on experience, training and availability.  

 

4. All members of the Licensing Committee are now fully trained, following a further 

training session which took place on 4 September. Members have also had the 

opportunity to attend and observe sub-committee meetings during this period.  

50



 

5. The Committee is asked to agree a methodology for appointing councillors to its 

Sub Committees to take effect from 15 October 2019 onwards. One option which 

members may wish to consider, based on a membership of three councillors plus 

one reserve, is to select councillors alphabetically from the list of Licensing 

Committee members on a rota basis as suggested in Appendix 1.  

 

6. In using this rota system it is acknowledged that there will be occasions when 

both a member of the sub-committee and the named reserve become 

unavailable, in which case it is suggested that Democratic Services contact the 

next councillors on the alphabetical list of Committee members to seek 

replacements.  

Site Visits 

7. Practices in the three preceding authorities differed in respect of the use of site 

visits by Licensing Committees and Licensing Sub Committees. The Committee 

may wish to consider whether there are any circumstances where the Licensing 

Committee or Licensing Sub Committees may deem it necessary to undertake a 

site visit. If so, the Committee may wish to request that a site visit protocol is put 

together for consideration at its next meeting, to set out how site visits are agreed, 

arranged and undertaken. 

 

Summary of financial implications   

6. There are no financial implications arising from this report.  

Summary of legal implications   

7.   Arrangements for the discharge of functions in respect of the Licensing Committee 

and Licensing Sub Committees must comply with all relevant legislation. Failure to have 

appropriate arrangements in place could portray a lack of transparency and could result 

in subsequent challenge to the decision-making process.   

Summary of human resources implications   

8.   There are no human resources implications arising from this report. 

Summary of environmental impact   

9.  There are no environmental implications arising from this report. 

Summary of public health implications   

10.  There are no public health implications arising from this report. 

Summary of equality implications   

11.  There are no equality implications arising from this report. 

51



Summary of risk assessment   

12.  There are no risks arising from this report. 

Appendices   

Appendix 1 – Suggested list of sub-committee memberships October 2019 to April 

2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1 

 

Suggested list of sub-committee memberships, October 2019 to April 2020. 

52



 

Date of Sub 

Committee 

 

Membership 

 

15 October 2019 Cllrs Bagwell, Baron, Burton – Butler (reserve) 

 

29 October 2019 Cllrs J Butt, Decent, Dion – Dove (reserve) 

 

12 November 2019 Cllrs Dunlop, Farquhar, Farr – Flagg (reserve) 

 

26 November 2019 Cllrs T Johnson, Kelsey, Parrish – Bagwell (reserve) 

 

10 December 2019 Cllrs Baron, Burton, Butler – J Butt (reserve) 

 

14 January 2020 Cllrs Decent, Dion, Dove – Dunlop (reserve) 

 

28 January 2020 Cllrs Farquhar, Farr, Flagg – T Johnson (reserve) 

 

4 February 2020 Cllrs Kelsey, Parrish, Bagwell – Baron (reserve) 

 

18 February 2020 Cllrs Burton, Butler, Butt – Decent (reserve) 

 

3 March 2020 Cllrs Dion, Dove, Dunlop – Farquhar (reserve) 

 

17 March 2020 Cllrs Farr, Flagg, T Johnson – Kelsey (reserve) 

 

31 March 2020 Cllrs Parrish, Bagwell, Baron – Burton (reserve) 

 

14 April 2020 Cllrs Butler, J Butt, Decent – Dion (reserve) 

 

28 April 2020 Cllrs Dove, Dunlop, Farquhar – Farr (reserve) 

 

 

53



This page is intentionally left blank

54


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes 12th June 2019
	Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes 19th July 2019
	Licensing Sub-Committee 23rd July 2019
	Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes 6th August 2019
	Licensing Sub-Committee Minutes 20th August 2019

	6 Review of Hackney Carriage Fares within the Christchurch Zone
	Review of Hackney Carriage Fares within the Christchurch Zone Appendix 1
	Review of Hackney Carriage Fares within the Christchurch Zone Appendix 2

	7 Licensing Act 2003 - Review and Harmonisation of Statement of Licensing Policy
	8 Administrative Arrangements for the Licensing Committee and Sub Committees

